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Vice Chair Johnson opened the hearing on HB 1409.

Rep. George Keiser, District 47: This bill relates to the imposition of a fee by Job Service ND
on certain employers for employers in the return to employer status. In the interim, the
committee worked at the direction of the legislature aggressively on an issue which was job
attached employees for negative balance employers. Employers in our state, when they have
to lay people off, they can create, or place them into a category which is job attached. There's
a good reason to do that. There are many employees in our state which are still employees.
They may be in manufacturing, they may be in the construction industry, they can be in a
variety of industries, but they have tremendous skills that we want to protect. So, when an
employer has to lay them off, they would like to put them into a category known as job
attached, which has with it certain privileges. They don’t have to be as aggressively seeking
employment, and doing some other things that are beneficial to the employee, and are very
important and vital to the emplioyer. They need the ability to have job attached employee.
Prior to the last session, it was a case to the employee as how to become job attached. Prior
to the last session, an employee became job attached simply by going to Job Setvice after

being laid off, and they told Job Service I'm job attached, and Job Service would then say your
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. job attached, and life would go on. There was no penalty that was just the category you were

placed in. Last session, because of a bill introduced to this committee the recognition that
perhaps the employee shouldn’t be determining whether or not you are job attached, it should
be the employer, and there should be certain responsibilities associated with that. We made a
change in the form used by job Service, and now the employer must indicate which employees
are job attached. So, we now have the employer determining whose going to be job attached,
and whose not. In addition to that, in the Unemployment Insurance Reserve Trust Fund, we
have two large groups of employers. We have the positive balance employers, and the
negative balance employers. The positive balance employers simply mean that they pay more
in premiums every year than there employees that they lay off collect, and the rate that which
they pay is determined by how good their reserve account is in the Unemployment insurance
Reserve Trust Fund. The negative balance employers are those employers, for whatever
reason, they pay their premium in, but the benefits paid to the employees that they lay off is
greater than the premiums paid in. That sounds like a pretty dumb insurance program. We
wouldn’t allow a situation where an insurance company keeps collecting less money then
they're paying out. Historically, the legislature, and certainly my position, supports from a
policy standpoint that in employment, there must, out of necessity, be the potential for the
availability of negative balance employers for two reasons. One, there are some industries
that really can't afford it; the road construction industry is a good example. They're going to
have 4-5 months where they're not going to be able to work. Now, we could say from a policy
standpoint, let's make them self insured, let's make them pay everything in, and they have to
cover whatever the cost is, but that's an option that I'm not excited about for a variety of
reasons. We do not require all employees to be self insured. I'm an employee in the state,

and if for some reason | lose 60% of my business, | can assure you I'm going to lay a bunch of
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people off, and I'm going to go into the negative balance category, and if we're going to have
you self insure, | might very well be out of business. From an economic development
standpoint, it would be terrible. What this bill attempts to do is say look, for the negative
balance employers, if you're going to designate somebody as job attached, that's kind of a
benefit to you, and it's a benefit to the employee. What we want to do on those certain
employees, the ones on the return to work employer status, we want to impose a fee to each
employer for which the cumulative contribution is a lesson the employers get, cumulative
benefits, and it only applies to the negative balance employers. The amount of the fee
imposed on this section is $100.00 per base period employee under the return to work status.
So, employer A has 50 employees that they say are gong to be job attached. They then will be
assessed $100.00 per employee, or $5,000 to help cover part of that cost. Where do those
dollars go? 50% goes into the Unemployment Contribution, actually goes in to help us with
their cost to their account, and 50% goes into the tariff, which is the federal component to help
cover the cost of managing this account. These fees are nonrefundable. Why should it be
$100.00? If one employee costs the fund $2,000, why isn't it $2,0007? That gets back to the
philosophical position, an argument of if it's self insurance or not self insurance, but the reason
and the only way we came up with this approach was because, we did have a better approach,
but in unemployment, it's the one unique case where the federal government has to do with all
unemployment legislation so, we have to send it to our regional office in Dallas, and they said
you can’'t do it. We did come back and the department was very creative with coming up with
this, and Dallas did sign off on it. They gave us a loophole, and we took advantage of it. What
we're trying to do is build in some accountability in the job attached provision of our Century
Code.

Larry Anderson, Job Service ND: See written testimony #1.
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Rep. Dosch: Could you explain to me if | am a job attached employee, what are the
requirements on me to seek unemployment, or temporary work?

Larry: As | indicated, you are exempt from the work search requirement with one condition;
you must remain in contact with your previous employer that has designated that you will
return to employment with them. If you're a member of the collective bargaining agreement,
then you must remain in contact with NRA.

Rep. Kasper: If we change statute in some other bill requiring that an employer now
designates what employees are job attached, or is this bill intended to do so? If this is the bill
intending to do that, where does it do that?

Larry: We do not have currently anywhere in statute that requirement that the employer
designate the job attachment status. The Unemployment Insurance Advisory Council
recommended that we make changes to the notice that we send to the business, so that it was
clear to the business that if they wanted the person to be job attached, that they’d have to take
some action. The previous notice could have been misleading to our employers in our state,
because they may have been unknowingly job attaching people without their full knowledge.
Rep. Kasper: Currently, the situation stays the same that an employee declares that they are
job attached. That employee becomes job attached, or does the employer have to sign off?
Larry: The burden to provide reason for loss of employment has always been, and will be with
the business. The notice sent to the employer, the Unemployment Insurance Advisory Council
felt it was hard to understand, and so they recommended changes. Instantly when a person
filed a claim for unemployment, the first thing that happens is we take a statement from the
individual filing the claim to the reason why they are no longer working. The second thing that

we do is extend the notice to our employer’s in our state asking the employer if the person is

out of work through no fault of their own. The form previously said if they're out of work




Page 5

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution No. HB 1409

Hearing Date: January 24, 2007

through no fault of their own, then you need not take any action. The changes that have now
been made to the form make it clear that if they want that person to have a job attachment
status, they need to take some action on that notice by notifying them.

Rep. Kasper: Under the current system, there is no system whereby layoffs come in the fall,
and the employer wishes employee certainty. There is no system currently where the
employer notifies the department of who is job attached?

Larry: Correct. It's more of a rare occasion that unemployment occurs in chunks, it occurs
more on the individual basis, and we treat every claim as an individual claim.

Rep. Keiser: In the past, the employee could say I'm job attached, and they were. Currently,
it doesn’t matter what the employee says to your department, until this $100.00 is paid for that
employee by the employer, they're not job attached, and that eliminates the need for a form.
Larry: If this bill becomes legislation, you are exactly right, with one clarifier. This is imposed
on negative balance employers, so positive balance employers would be treated the way
they're treated now.

Rep. Amerman: The two things this is trying to solve is shift the monetary burden to the
negative balance employers, and make more workers available in the workforce. If you have
job attached, and they have to pay a $100.00 fee, and if an employer lays off 20 people at
$20.00 an hour, and he doesn't want to pay the fee, they're just out there. In reality, they
would then go through your system, and they could go out and say | don’'t want a $10.00 an
hour job, because | was making $20.00 an hour. So, they're not actually available to the whole
workforce. They might be out there, but that doesn’'t mean they are going to work for a lot less.
Larry: Nothing in this statute will cause us not to continue to apply the suitability provisions

against work search requirements for employees.
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Rep. Keiser: You made the comment that it would still operate the way it does currently for
the positive balance employers, so what they're paying is not affecting other people in the
system, it's just affecting them.

Larry: That's exactly right. The primary differentiation between positive balance employer and
negative balance employer is positive balance employers make more in contributions, and we
pay out benefits. Negative balance employers make more benefit payments then they make in
contributions.

Rep. Kasper: On the positive balance employer, when the employee shows up and claims to
be job attached, does that notice still go to the employer that this employee is making a claim
as a job attached employee, so the positive balance employer is notified on an individual
basis?

Larry: Yes.

Rep. Dosch: When we're talking about negative balance employers, could you give me a
number of what kinds of an impact as a group the negative balance employers have on the
unemployment fund?

Larry: The negative rate group was about % of a million in deficit in 2005, and we're over a
million deficit in 2004, and a little over a million dollar deficit in 2003.

Rep. Thorpe: If a positive employer temporarily slips into the negative employer balance,
would they be subject to this $100.007

Larry: Yes, if this legislation becomes law they would be.

Tom Balzer, ND Motor Carriers Association: See written testimony #2

Rep. Dosch: In your example you gave in regards to the last paragraph of your testimony on

the first page, you indicated that currently under your example, this leaves an unfunded

amount of about over $1600 per employee that has to be picked up by other employers. So,
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your organization feels that $100.00 is probably a pretty fair exchange in relation to a $1600
cost if you were paying 100% of your premiums.

Tom: | believe so. The $1600 is the actual under funded benefit, and you're not asking to be
on a self insured basis where they would pick up that full $1600. Something is better than
nothing, and we feel the $100.00 rate is a reasonable rate.

Maren Daily, Job Service ND: Discussion of handout. See handout C.

Marv Scar, EWI in Fargo, ND: Support HB 1409. See handouts A and B.

Rep. Amerman: You are saying that in your industry there’s a shortage of employees, and it's
hard to find the workers. Then you mentioned when you lay off employees, they are on their
own, they are not job attached. Why are you laying off the employees?

Marv: The point | was making is if | do lay off people.

Rep. Amerman: In the trucking industry wide, you said an 82% turnover industry wide. Why
is there all of this turnover?

Marv: The reason for the turnover in nationwide trucking is lifestyle. Most people that get out
of trucking try to get jobs close to home.

Dick Johnson, ND Motor Carriers Association: See written testimony #3.

Russ Hanson, Associated General Contractors of ND: Opposed to HB 1409. See written
testimony #4

Rep. Kasper: How long do we have to have the positive employers subsidize the negative
employers. Your chart shows about 40% of the cost of the negative balance employers are
your industry. [f | look at the numbers, there’s about 42 million dollars that the negative

balance employers are put under the fund. They're a liability. When do we get to the point

. where we simply say no, maybe it's time for us to pay our fair share? What would happen if
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your industry had to pay their fair share, wouldn’t you just simply increase profit to make up for
that cost anyway?

Russ: Sure, we'll go into bid. The question is when that amount becomes an amount at that
competitive stage with somebody from out of state. Would this do it, 'm not sure. We think
the solution is in SB 2035, where the negative balance employers are picking up $3.4 million.
Rep. Kasper: You're suggesting that there is another bill coming that is going to require your
industry to pay $3 million dollars more in premiums?

Russ: Yes.

Rep. Clark: Does this other bill do anything to solve the shortage of workers that are facing
employers in the state of ND?

Russ: No. It modifies the rates for positive and negative balance employers when the target
IS reached.

Rep. Dosch: Just to clarify, the other bill does deal with a totally different issue though. That
deais with the surplus that the positive employers paid in, and this deals with different issues
with job attached.

Russ: You're absolutely correct.

Marvin Miller, Twin City Roofing Inc. in Mandan, ND: See written testimony #5.

Brad Ballweber, Northern Improvement Company: See written testimony #6.

Rep. Kasper: Would you support getting your company just to a positive base with your rates,
so you could be a positive base employer in ND?

Brad: | believe that the legislation in SB 2035 would tread towards that, and we would support
that.

David Kemnitz, AFLCIO: Opposed to HB 1409.

Rep. Dosch: Is there a value to businesses having an employee on a job attached basis?
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David: | would expect there's a substantial value to it. Our people help your system
immensely by staying out of the administrative cost that Job Service must incur by regulating.
Rep. Dosch: We heard testimony on insurance issues, and this is an insurance fund as well.
When we’re talking about negative balance employers, we're talking about employers in many
cases who consistently cost the fund money. One way we could have the state solve this is to
go on self insured. If we would conceivably go to that, the cost we occurred this morning in
testimony was that this could affectively cost every employer $1600 additional then what they
are paying in premium right now. Isn't $100.00 a pretty good trade out to $16007

David: The state the political subdivisions are in is pay as they go, so their budgets don't
always reflect that they have any funds that they can repay Job Service for the actual cost of

unemployment,

. Hearing closed.
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Chairman Kaiser opened discussion of HB 1409. This is the bill for the imposition of a fee
by Job Service. This came out of the interim committee and didn't look like this at all. Out of
the interim committee was developed a bill which would assign a fee to the employer based on
the risk of exposure. This bill was introduced on the senate side and defeated because it hog
housed. Rather than have a graduated fee from $100 to $1200, this has a flat fee of $100,
Fifty percent of those dollars will go to the employer's account as an unemployment tax
payment. Fifty percent will go toward paying the cost of administering the program. That
enables it to minimize the fiscal impact of it and it's a self-funded program.

Representative Clark: This is the bill that none of the contractors liked. In spite of that |
move a Do Pass.

Representative Gruchalla: |second.

Representative Amerman: | resisted this bill in the interim and am probably going to do so
today. It does some things as far status negative employers--$50. | don't think it really puts
more employees out on the job market like it might because this is going to affect construction
workers, trade workers, etc., who get laid off seasonally. They historically make some prefty
good wages. As far as them going out on the job market, all they are going to have to do is

make a couple of inquiries and say | can't work and they won't be available out there anyway.
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The other thing is it imposes a fee on construction and other employers. If they do a couple of
week layoff here and two- three-week layoff, it certainly puts a burden on a lot of the trade
people. |just can't support this bill.

Representative Ruby: The reason | like the bill is because it doesn’t require employers to
pay for the job that is attached to employees. It should hold down their rates somewhat. |
think it's something they can accept as a necessary part of doing layoffs or seasonal work.
Representative Gruchalla: | was reading a union booklet a while back and when
unemployment insurance was first announced it was set up for unions who lay off periodically.
It was never designed for somebody who got laid off every year like a seasonal worker. They
just got another job in the winter. | think it's gone to far and those types of industries should
pay a little bit higher.

Representative Thorpe: Does anyone know the top rate for a negative employer? Is it
10.097?

Representative Kaiser: Yes. If you pay 10.09 you are receiving a significant—probably 5 —
10% back in terms of unfunded payments back to your employee. You only get the high rate,
you earn it really.

Representative Kasper: This applies mostly to larger contractors who lay off workforce in the
winter. The question was asked if they could absorb this in their bids. The answer was very
easily because that's what will happen. They should pay more hecause they are using more.
They'll cover it but the fund is what we have to look at.

A roll call vote was taken on the Do Pass on HB 1409: Yes: 10, No: 2, Absent: 2

{Dosch and Zaiser) The motion carried.

Representative Dosch will carry the bill.



FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Council
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Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1409

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared (o
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law,

2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium
General |Other Funds| General [Other Funds| General |Other Funds
Fund Fund Fund
Revenues 30 30 $0) $1,118,530) $0) $306,010
Expenditures $0| 50 $0 $379,525 $0| 30
Appropriations $0 30 $0 $0 $0 $0

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.

2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium
School School School
Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts
30 30 30 $0 30 30 50 30 50

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Requires Job Service to impose a fee on negative rate employers for each employee they choose to place in a
return-to-employer status.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which
have fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments refevant to the analysis.

Based upon current usage of return to employer status, it is estimated that fees collected during the first year would
be approximately $588,700.00. Of this amount, 50% is being considered fee revenue and will be deposited in the
Federal Advance Interest Repayment Fund. The remaining 50% is considered a contribution by the employer and will
be deposited in the Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund. It is anticipated that during each successive year, return to
employer status will decline by 10%, resulting in a decline in the amount of revenue generated by this fee. Estimated
revenues for the 2007-2009 biennium are $3$1,118,530. Estimated revenues for the 2009-2011 biennium are
$906,010.

Implementing this bill will result in a significant fiscal impact due to pregramming of the agency mainframe
Unemployment Insurance (Ul) computerized system. Most areas of the Tax system and portions of the Benefits
system will need modification to accommodate this new fee. Some of the individual changes required will be:
» Database modifications

+ Creation of new databases

» MIS system interface modifications and additions

* Creation and maodification of mainframe batch processes Automated

correspondence and billing

« Creation of required reports related to employer contributions

+ Modification of MIS system for appropriate application of moneys

owed

+ Modification of the data validation system

« Changes to the Tax Internet based customer application, UIEASY

Due to limited Job Service North Dakota programming staff availability, it is expected that a contractor will be needed
to complete the required programming. Contractor programming costs are estimated as follows:

$372,360 - 1,284 Programmer/Analyst hours

$ 5,000 - Developer software costs

$ 1,018 - Ongoing cost of developer software

$ 175 - Network hookup




$ 232 - Ongoing network cost
$ 450 - Emulation software

$ 290 - Office Suite software
$379,525 - Total Cost

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

The Federal Advance Interest Repayment Fund revenues will increase by $559,265 in the 2007-2009 biennium and
$453,005 in the 2009-2011 biennium.

The Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund revenues will increase by $559,265 in the 2007-2009 biennium and
$453,005 in the 2009-2011 biennium. Unemployment Insurance Trust funds may only be used to pay unemptoyment
benefits.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

The expenditure would be to enter into a contract with external programmers. The projected expenditure would affect
the operating expense line item and would be charged to the agency's federal funds and/or would be charged to the
Federal Advance Interest Repayment Fund.

The expenditures, if any, would be offset against another planned expenditure in order to stay within the available
resources.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a
continuing appropriation.

Because the agency would not be receiving any additional federal resources to fund this expenditure, an offsetting
decrease in another budgeted operating expense item would need to be accomplished. Therefore, there would not be
any impact on the agency's appropriation. Any Federal Advance Interest Repayment Fund revenues and expenditures
are under continuing appropriation status.

Name: Larry Anderson lAgency: Job Service
Phone Number: 701-328-2843 Date Prepared: 01/18/2007
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Chm. Svedjan opened the hearing on HB 1409.

Rep. Keiser, Committee Chairman, Industry Business and Labor: Employers make
deposits into the Unemployment Insurance Reserve Trust Fund (UIRTF) to pay for employees
when they are laid off. There are two divisions within the employer groups: Positive Value
Employers (paid more in premiums over the last six years than they have taken out) and
Negative Balance Employers (paid into the fund, but the fund paid out more than they paid in).
This is a huge policy issue.

Rep. Keiser: IBL believes it is important to maintain the negative balance employers to
maintain a quality workforce in those areas that must lay off employees for relatively long
period of time due to the nature of the business, such as a road construction company that
does little work in winter months. It is also important to keep negative balance employers for
reasons of economic development. Rep. Keiser gave the example of such an employer (Ref.
2:56). We do everything within reason to limit negative balance employers. They pay a much
higher rate.

This bill addresses negative balance employers and “job attached” employees. Job attached

employees are those employees (for a negative balance employer) that are not required to

meet typical conditions. It's advantageous to be job attached. The reason to job attach
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employees is to keep them in the state or go to another job. We want the employees to be
ready when they are needed.

During the interim we did a study and recognized two problems: 1. Who decides an employee |
is job attached? Up until a year ago, the employee decided. As of today, the employer must
designate who is job attached, but there is no restriction or penalty to putting an employee in a
job attached category. This bill says that the employer must name the employees designated
as job attached and pay $100 for every job attached employee. Fifty percent of that money will
go into the fund against benefits paid. Fifty percent will go into FAIRF (Federal Advance
Interest Repayment Fund). The reason for this is to pay for recurring costs as indicated on the
Fiscal Note.

Chm. Svedjan: Funds go into that fund (FAIRF) because they have operational expenses that
relate to this?

Rep. Keiser: That is correct. They are projecting revenues of $1, 118,530, expenditures of
$379,525. Half of that $1 million is going to be applied toward your experience rating. The \
money stays within Job Service. The interim committee had a bill with a graduated scale and
the feds ruled it was illegal. IBL found this as the only way to circumvent the federal rules on
putting a penalty on job attachment. This formula has been approved by the federal
government relative to Job Service.

Chm. Svedjan: There are no general funds involved here. This goes into Job Service and is
split into those two funds. The $100 is per employee to job attach an employee.

Rep. Hawken: | am getting a lot of email about this bill and no one is asking me to vote for it.
Where do our negative rates compare to the national?

Rep. Keiser: Our top negative rate is about at the top rate nationally. Our lowest negative rate

is not the highest in the country. You EARN the rate you get based on utilization. Our formula



Page 3

House Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution No. HB 1409
Hearing Date: February 6, 2007

allows employers to reduce their rate. They can buy down their rate at any time and get into
the positive category or a lower negative rate.

Rep. Gulleson: |s there an inherent incentive for the employer to keep an employee attached
through the off season? Wouldn't it be to their advantage to just let the employee go?

Rep. Keiser: Right now | would bet 90-100 percent of your employees if you're a negative
balance employer are declaring they are job attached and the employer is saying “l would like
you to come back.” That's not the purpose of job attached. The purpose was for the critical
employees you need to start up your business, bring it back online, and with qualified,
experienced employees. On the other hand, there are a lot of employees who are hired for one
or two years and have no intention of coming back and don't qualify for job attached and
shouldn’t be subsidized.

Rep. Ekstrom: What kind of negative testimony did you have on this bill?

Rep. Keiser: The AGC spoke in opposition to this bill. | don’t remember anyone else. Other
groups spoke in support of this bill.

Chm. Svedjan: Business representative groups?

Rep. Keiser: Motor carriers, for example.

Rep. Carlson: How did you establish the $100 fee?

Rep. Keiser: We backed into it. How much do we need to pay for the program? Based on the
numbers, we'll need about $50 per person. The federal guidelines said you need a 50/50 split.
You can't go over %40 on the administrative, so we said we want the penalty to be reasonable.
Rep. Carlson: By using the job attached formula and the $100, does this increase the liability
of this negative fund employer?

Rep. Keiser: It reduces it because they are less likely to consider someone job attached and

those people are then more likely to go out and find employment. Also, when they make this
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payment, fifty percent goes into their account. You are actually putting additional money into
your fund which could potentially reduce the rate.

Rep. Carlson: There is no adverse affect to the premiums that are being paid by the positive
balance employer?

Rep. Keiser: The only affect it can have is a positive one.

Rep. Carlson: | have some concern from the positive balance employers like me who are
paying higher premiums.

Rep. Keiser: | disagree. It does help you. It puts fifty new dollars there that weren't there
before into that fund to help pay the costs of the benefits paid. That's $50 that will not be

coming out of the positive balance employer's pocket.

Rep. Gulleson motioned for a Do Not Pass. Rep. Kerzman seconded the motion. The
motion carried by a roll call vote 0 19 ayes, 4 nays and 1 absent and not voting. Rep.

Gulleson was designated to carry the bill.
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, I am Larry Anderson, Director of
Workforce and Unemployment Insurance Programs with Job Service North Dakota. [ am
here today to discuss House Bill 1409, a bill which requires Job Service North Dakota to

impose a fee upon employers in the negative tax rate category who choose to utilize

return-to-employer status for laid off employees of their firms.

This bill is the result of work by the Interim Industry Business and Labor Committee
based upon the results of a report on the Reemployment Policies and Practices of Job

Service North Dakota as directed by HB 1198 of the 59th Legislative session.

House Bill 1409, requires that Job Service North Dakota assess a fee to negative balance
employers choosing to utilize return-to-employer status for employees they have laid off,
but who they wish to have return to employment with them after the layoff period. The

bill also outlines the specific uses for the moneys collected as a result of the fee.




In order to properly explain the bill, I will first provide some information as to the
Unemployment Insurance process. This information should help to understand the

various aspects associated with this legislation.

When an unemployment insurance claimant is placed in a return-to-employer status, the
progfam eligibility requirements that must be met by the claimant are different than for a
claimant who is laid off permanently. One of the key differences 1s that claimants who
are coded as returning-to-employer are not required to search for work during the time in
which they are unemployed. Return-to-employer status is an important piece of the
Unemployment Insurance program for many North Dakota employers. At this time,
approximately 59% of the unemployment insurance claimants in North Dakota are coded
as returning-to-employer. This equates to 10,478 individuals in return-to-employer
status. Of these 10,478 claimants, 5,887 work for negative balance employers. This is
approximately 56% of all of the claimants coded as returning-to-employment. The other

44% work for positive balance employers.

Many employers rely upon the return of trained employees from short-term or seasonal
layoffs in order to maintain the viability of their businesses. It should alse be noted that
there are many businesses in need of employees to maintain an appropriate level of
staffing, even as unemployed individuals who could effectively fill these open positions

are drawing Ul benefits. Although the skill sets desired by these employers does not




match the available skill sets of all of the Ul claimants coded as returning-to-employer,
many of these claimants possess the necessary training and skills required to complete the
available work, and many employers have expressed the desire to put these UI claimants

to work within their organizations, even if only for a limited period of time.

During the course of the study of Reemployment Policies and Practices of Job Service
North Dakota, concerns were raised by a segment of employers that both fell into the
positive balance category, and desired to hire additional staff. These employers
expressed frustration in the fact that as positive balance employers, they had borne a
majority of the costs of building the UI Trust Fund up to the designated target, while
negative balance employers were able to “protect” their workforce during times of layoft,
even though they had not contributed to the UI Trust Fund at the level that positive
balance employers had. It was felt that by imposing a fee upon negative balance
employers; only those employees who the employer felt were critical to the operation of
the business would be coded as returning-to-employer, thus making available to other
employers a segment of claimants previously out of the workforce due to return-to-
employer status. Additionally, it was felt that imposition of a return-to-employer fee
would shift additional monetary burden of the Ul program to the negative balance

employers of North Dakota.




House Bill 1409 is designed to address both concerns raised during the study; the
availability of workers, and the shift of monetary burden to negative balance employers.
This is accomplished by the imposition of a fee of $100.00 per employee coded as

returning-to-employer at the request of a negative balance employer.

Based on past usage of return-to-employer status, approximately 1,655 employers would
potentially be affected by the fee. These employers would be assessed fees totaling
approximately $1,118,350 in the first year. Of this amount, 50% of the moneys collected
would be considered as a contribution to the Ul Trust fund, and 50% would be deposited
in the Federal Advance Interest Repayment Account to be used to fund re-employment
efforts of Ul claimants in North Dakota, and to assist in maintaining the integrity of the
Ul program. While the numbers provided are based upon actual experience, Job Service
North Dakota feels that by applying this fee, use of return-to-employer status will be
reduced significantly in subsequent years, and collected fees will decline from the noted

amounts.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my testimony. At this time I would be happy to answer

any questions from the committee.
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Mr. Chairman and members of the House Industry, Business and Labor committee my
name is Tom Balzer, managing director of the North Dakota Motor Carriers Association.
I am here this morning to testify in support of House Bill 1409.

The return to employer status was established over 25 years ago as a management tool by
Job Service to balance workloads during times of seasonal employment and layoffs. With
nearly 70% of the claimants being job attached this management decision by Job Service
has’grown into a full fledged employee retention program for some employers at the
expense of others.

In both federal and state law, for a claimant to be eligible for unemployment
compensation they must meet four criteria:

They must have lost employment at no fault of their own,
They must be able to work, :

They must be available for work, and .

They must be actively seeking work

B W

Our concern is that a job attached employee is given special treatment as they are not
required to be available for work nor actively seek work. The unemployment trust fund is
paying for approximately 12,000 claimants annually without a requirement to follow both
state and federal law.

We do acknowledge the need for the return-to-employer option as a method of keeping
our workforce available in the state; and in order to find a compromise to the situation,
there are two important factors:

First is accountability by the employers to closely monitor which employees are utilizing
the return to employer status. Currently, the process starts with the employee filing a
claim and designates them self as job attached. Then a notice is sent to an employer, if
the employer does not contest this claim or does not respond the employee by default is
Job attached. We feel that there is an over-utilization under the current system, that some
employees who are not necessary to the operations of the business are job attached
because there is no incentive for the employer to return the form.

The second is that employers who benefit from this system do not unduly burden the
system. Currently an employer can pay up to $2,048.27 ($20,300 x 10.09%) per
employee for their contribution to the unemployment compensation fund. The average
Job attached claimant draws unemployment compensation for 10.93 weeks at $340
therefore receiving benefits of $3,716.20. This leaves an under-funded amount of
$1,667.93 per employee that must be covered by other employers.




The largest single employer utilizing the return to employer status does so for
approximately 260 employees. Under House Bill 1409 this employer would have to pay
$26,000. Now take the $1,667.93 of under-funded benefits in the above example
multiplied by those 260 employees, resulting in a total of $433,661.80 annually to be
picked up by other employers to cover the under-funded unemployment benefits of this
one employer. Is a $26,000 contribution too much to ask for 17 times the return?

We feel the $100 fee is a fair and reasonable assessment as well as provide enough
incentive for employers to only place those employees that are truly necessary for their
busingss on return to employer status.

I have with me today Marv Skar, president of E.W. Wylie in Fargo and Dick Johnsen,
president of Johnsen Trailer Sales in Bismarck and Fargo to give you a perspective of
how this affects their business.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my testimony and I would be happy to answer any
questions the committee may have, before Mr. Skar and Mr. Johnsen address you.




CHAIMAN KEISER AND MEMBERS OF THE HOUSE 1IBL COMMITTEE

FOR THE RECORD MY NAME IS DICK JOHNSENM I CHAIR THE LEGISLATIVE
COMMITTEE OF THE NDMCA

I APPEAR TODAY IN SUPPORT OF HB 1409

THE NDMCA HAS A LONGTERM INVOLVEMENT IN JOB SERVICE MATTERS
AND LEGISLATION GOING BACK TO THE 80°S.

AS AN INDUSTRY WE SUPPORT THIS LEGISLATION HOWEVER MOST OF
OUR MEMBERS DO NOT THINK IT GOES FAR ENOUGH. IT IS HOWEVER A
STEP IN THE RIGHT DIRECTON.

IN OUR OPINION IF AN EMPLOYER WANTS TO DECLARE HIS UNEMPLOYED
WORKERS AS HAVING RETURN TO WORK STATUS THEY SHOULD BE
RESPONSIBLE IFOR ALL ASSCCIATED COSTS. BEING A REALIST I
UNDERSTAND THAT THAT WILL PROBABLY NEVER HAPPEN. WE
UNDERSTAND THAT WE ARE DEALING WITH A FORM OF INSURANCE BUT
IT IS AN INSURANCE THAT IS NOT BASED ON LOSS RATIOS AND EXPOSURE
ALONE LIKE INDEMNITY INSURANCE, THERE 1S A SOCIAL ELEMENT
INVOLVED.

OUR INDUSTRY DOESN’T THINK THAT A $100 FEE FOR THE RIGHT TO
DECLARE THAT AN EMPLOYEE HAS RETURN TO WORK STATUS IS A HIGH
PRICE TO PAY FOR AN EMPLOYER TO HAVE SOME REASSURANE THAT AN
EMPLOYEE WILL BE AVAILABLE TO THAT EMPLOYER WHEN WORK
BECOMES AVAILABLE

HB 1409 AND HB 1413 WHICH YOU HEAR NEXT SOMEWHAT LEVEL THE
FIELD BETWEEN THE POSITIVE BALANCE EMPLOYERS AS A GROUP THAT
CONTRIBUTE FAR IN EXCESS OF BENEFITS PAID AND NEGATIVE BALANCE
EMPLOYERS AS A GROUP.

THAT EXCESS IN THE YIARS 2003-2005 TOTALED MORE THAN 43 MILLION
DOLLARS AND ENABLED THE RESERVE TO REACH TARGET AHEAD OF
SCHEDULE.

MR CHATMAN 1 WANT TO THAN YOU FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO EXPRESS
OUR INDUSTRIES VIEWS ON THIS IMPORTANT LEGISLATION.
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Mr. Chairman and members of the House Industry, Business, & Labor Committee, my
name is Russ Hanson with the Associated General Contractors of North Dakota and the

association is opposed to HB 1409.

We acknowledge the issue the positive balance employers have regarding the inability to
find an adequate number of employees for their profession. However, the AGC believes
HB 1409 will not solve it. North Dakota has one of the lowest unemployment rates in the
nation and all occupations are having difficulty finding employees to fill vacancies. We
view the problem as a labor shortage and changing the “return to work™ policy will not

address the situation in our opinion.

The “Return to Work™ provision is one our industry takes very seriously and the
respective employers who utilize it do so to protect key employees who return to work
annually. These employees are critical to the operation. The nature of their occupation
coupled with the seasonal limits make “Return to Work” critical. An excellent
improvement to this process is being implemented by changing the Ul claim form to
clarify to the employer which employees are being named to “return to work” status. The
previous form was confusing and we applaud Job Service for listening to industry and

adopting the change.

To clarify a couple of assumptions, I have attached several items to this testimony.
Please refer to attachment one. This is an illustration of the composition of the negative
balance employers., While the construction industry is the largest single negative balance
employer — please note there are several other key industries which would be affected by
the policy change in HB 1409. Agriculture, manufacturing, wholesale, transportation,
administrative, and service industries are all affected by HB 1409. It is not simply a

provision utilized by the construction industry.



Another assumption is that the negative balance employers have been a “drain” on the
Unemployment Insurance Fund and perhaps abuse of the “Return to Work” provision is
the cause. We do not view it that way. Please refer to attachment two and note the
difference between contributions given and benefits paid for the positive and negative
balance employers. The majority of the negative balance employers actually contribute
more than they receive in benefits. When comparing the difference — it outlines the fact
that the negatives do not drain the fund — rather the positive balance employers were

more responsible for building the reserves of the fund to the level it is today.

We outlined attachment two to illustrate what we believe is the policy solution the
Legislature should consider to reward the positive balance erﬁployers who built the
reserves rather than implement an additional fee for employers who utilize a provision

necessary to retain key employees.

After crossover, the House will consider SB 2035 which was a companion bill to HB
1409 from a 2005-07 interim study. This legislation rewards the positive balance
employers by issuing them a reduction in premium when the Ul fund is at or above its
reserve target while the negative balance employers will receive no reduction. In fact the
negatives will accept additional premium responsibility. This is illustrated in attachment
three which outlines the rate modification proposed in SB 2035. This is legislation we

support and proactively addresses a situation which deserves attention.

We are opposed to HB 1409 because we do not believe it will address the issue of
positive balance employers gaining access to the “return to work” status employees and
we believe an additional fee to utilize this provision is unfair. The negative balance
employers pay a rate that is sometimes ten times higher than the lowest negative balance
employers. We envision the result from the enactment of HB 1409 would be one of two
scenarios. Either the employers will pay the additional tax/fee to retain the key
employees and that will be passed on to the consumer. Or, key employees may decide to

find employment elsewhere (other states) where this policy is not in place. Either way,

the issue of accessing these employees is not achieved and our state faces the possibility




of losing valuable employees. Another reason we do not believe HB 1409 is necessary is
the fact that the duration of receiving benefits for “Return to Work” employees is nearly
identical to those who are actively seeking work. We believe this fact illustrates key
employees receive Ul benefits when they are unable to work and return to the employer

as soon as work 1s available.

In conclusion, when our UT reserves are at targeted levels ($80 million plus) - adding an

additional $1.8 million dollar assessment to business is a policy proposal we strongly

There are contractors who are present who will illustrate the scenarios considered when -

utilizing “return to work” provision and why it is important to their business.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, thank you for the opportunity to testify
today. We request you issue a Do Not Pass recommendation to HB 1409 and

communicate to you there is another legislative proposal which addresses the issues of

positive balance employers. T would be happy to attempt to address any questions.




T S L m&ma ﬁ%s 382823 sy Bﬁsﬁ

Eu.ﬂoﬁEu REN_E oaﬁmuz unx 8& oucuconxu S00T XD ooScw. :

e ...X.ow.

S owﬂcuouon_
%O0b  %OE %07

) -.X-N..w “ Ry

‘.nx,mu,.,

L %01 %0

ST

B soomIog =™po
i .uu_uoa:e:ooo{

Uy .
S qr:..ﬁ.: .
JeuonEonpg

j csnensunupy

Juswaadeusing

§ Ieuossyorg
o1esH ey
. SouBUL{

UONBULIQIU]L--

i uopepodsuvyy,
 veu
3 oressoym

d - Supgornueg
TEERERAd  voponnsuo)’

. sepmny
BupgN -

B Smnousy

kn-am-ﬁ.ﬂh ha— m.-@hb-nuﬂuni Ou-.u—ﬂm 0>-u-wwvz

| o

6LL'T

JEI0L|

9

o)

loe
S e

SL

or

- aEg
+ S90IAI9G IO
SUOIEPOUALIOODY
- ae)yeeH

e
lm

" [euonunpy
anppenSIIpY

. - Jusuodeuey
JEUOISS 01
. omsAyesy)

tL

A

9
1l
e

- . ooue,|
. uonenguy)

uonepodsuea]
S ey
~ oEsqoyMm |

(/)
689

(4%

\Q,ms@.ﬁ

| _u_ﬂ +g»£<_¢f+¢

1w

- Sumpognuely]
uononysuo)|
 saImmn

- ooy

amjnoudy

- %Q Eo%o_%cm ooq\ﬁwm o\:éwo Z




900T/9/L e Uiy | Jo a3y S|x'qluidwod SHJIUSE] SUOPRGIIUOY 18] Tedsty = (|
OrF'6LSTT |66°€L6'086'%E (IS VEF'095 LS LESPELO6'IT  |p'eee'g98'ce (10Tl cLL'Ls | [2E'S10'09K01 [12'182°9L0°2k [£5967°985 TS jeo ],
06'99L°Z5L'T  |€6'C16'959 $2'789'60¥°C OL'ER09FI'T  |8L'80c'coc BVT6ETIST LTBPTEIT T  |96°6EE°VSY  [€T88€°L99°] %6001 UOTIINNSUOD - MIN
18°009°6bT'E " |TLESH'999 £EC¥C0'916°E OSE65°TIV'E  |poOPY'ERD Py PE0'9S8'E 09°8F1'L69'T  {0£'S88°0LG |o6cee*899'e %R0°C UOHIMIISUOIUGU - MAN
E9'BSEORE.  |0E'BIT'SSY LY'658'801 9 SIT'sTS- LS'0LS'18L 1USSE95T LLTORTSL  |ObETi iVl : |£90ZE'ees 25680 T [wnwpuiy sanedaN
99'6L8'€01-  lziI'owp'oLs 9y'995°2LY 6T 6EE°TH- 89°007'8Z¢E 66198587 99°L0F 91~ |bWyLL'TSE BLOLEIET %6001 wnuixepy aanEdaN
£9902°96L-  ISS9¥E'SAS’E  [Z66EI'G6LT 9CELY'EVT - [LECOE'CEEY  {18T68°160°E IFIPSSER' - |06 LI LOb'E  [erorgi1Le’T %6001 .
T0TTO6LI- |3 H0F'8I0'E  ]9S°780°668'T 95°6£6°S OL'LEE'P99'E  |9T'LLz'0Lo'E 6T'8SH'RIOT- s vis'eol’s  |€T91T've0'E %69°6
£C°ES9°698-  |6€LB6'0IT'E |98 FER'SHE'T [9°E9TF1 vSI0T00FT  |STSOVPIY'T 1€80F 8Ly [91°L10'619°T  [S8'809°0K1°T %676
1L'18b'L81- 8EFLS'P60'T  |L9°T60'6E6' Y9 00T ¥e- BIZBILLIT  |¥S186'TS1T £8°509°09¢ STBCS'EB0T  [BUPIL'MHY'E %638
0S'SET'I11 OVLTUISI'T  |06'29E°29T°1 96'PP0"1E1- . [06TE0'LT9T  |p6L86'S6¥I 86°060'p £E'8FC01E 1E6EE°FIE %688
18°9LL°8E¢  |01'858'89°1  |16°PE9°L0S°L Loves'Le 0T'FrO'SEL LT895'T38 9L 1£9'19¢ isIcesl’'t  |LILyve'o9L' %60°8
eV LTE A AT RE $6°906'8€1°1 ZY96LS0s TUPEETLO'T  {ES0E1'8L8"T TLT1020T . 19°6F0'¥96 £E€T90991°I %69°L
9L'LLITOT 6T'S9L'16T SO'Evb vev T6°61H'STT ETGI0CIL [sv6Ev'obs 0L'3ST'PLL- E1'9EY'686- ErLL1's18 %67"L
oV'eiT'Es L1'T89°T8L 99°106'<98 06'L6E° L0 1€°881°60F° 1 |12°985919°] VEEOT'L- ITEPE 1011 {26°0%Lv60"1 %689 ,
08°'96L'8LY SIzieoes’y  lsggor'600c PEOEO'SII'L LS eLI'vL)l  {16°60T°682°C 8THLL'SSH TIPS '6IP' Y (PCSIZ VLT %659 parey aanwdaN
0TLY8'9L6 SLELYLSEY  1S6°0TS'PEG'S TO'BTE'CBO'T  |LS°E8R'69LE  165711T'SSE'S SO986° 161k~ [16°LSL°LIE'S |98 1LLSEI'S %6}
PLGPL'SO1'T  |LLQZOOEI'T  [IS'OLL'S6T'Y Pry98'65STl  |8C°6L6'950'C  170°VKE'919'E 166566041 TL1°20S°168"S  [80°Ly8095°'E %62}
ITBE6SHTT  |PIOFS'SET']  |SEPBII8FE LESIS'Lk'T  [OET155'859"1  |La'990'901 0T'BIS'TTOT  |S1'060'6HE 1 [SE'S09°ILE'E %61°1
SUOKS'ETS'T  {6T°LEG'E6L YLLY'LIE'E 69°V8TVFIT . [9F1LE'659 S1'959°€08°T TL69S'LLG'L  |S9'19L°88T°L  JLEIEE°99T'E %601
81°665°L6VT  |LS'THO'PYS SL1¥9'1#0° 65'LTV'BI0'T . |¥1'L1E'666 ELPPL'LIOE E6PST'P96'Y  108'S8T'FI8 . fELOVH'RLL'T %66'0
SOTISEVL'T  |PEL9L'99S TTBLE0IL'E LY OLL'BFIT  |SL169'T0L (TT OV IS8T 89°€ZSOLE'T  {06°LF9'9S11  I8SILI°LTS'T %680
E6'PSI'Y91'T  |68°TE'LES TELES'ISLT 9T SSP'TIS T  |2L865 116 86°€SO'PLYT LO'IS6'SIT'T  JE1'6E8°080'1  {0T'06L962'T %6L0
STYLE'ESE'l  {LE'166'6HS €9°696'€0S'T 62°65T'18S°l  |9T'008°0EL SI'090ZIET GO'STL'VPOL  {9C°L86'VS0'l  {SP'TIL'660'T 2%69°0
ISIBE'IST'T  [PE'TIC'EE0'T  [$R'T69'VBTT $8°TESOVL Ls'8te's8y’l  lzvisp'ote'l 96'660'961-  |LV'6LL'9SI'T  {15°612°096°] %680 .
89'STT6ET- 109EL'69%'T  |£E01S‘082'T Ze1E8'vyI- 1IT1L8'P16°T  ]69°6£0°0LL'T ETLIELES-  IpLgsU'ese's 1S 1v8 IzL ] %680 Pajey oANIs0g
TS'OvP'6LSTT |66°EL6'086°PE [ISPiv'09s'LS LESBYE'LO6'1Z |v9'e6E'898°SE [10°TvL'sLLLe | [2E°S10°09Y°01 [IZ18Z9L0°TY €S 96T 9€5 28 [810],
06'99LTSL'T  |S6°S16°9¢9 SR'789°60F°T OL'€80°9F1'T  [8L'80€'$9E 8Y'T6E'1IST LTSPTEIT L [96°65E°bSH £T885°L99°] %6001 UOTIONISUDD - MIN
13°009°6¥TE  |TL'ESH°999 £C°bS0'916°E [0S'€6S°ZIV'E | |6 OPP'ERY b PE0958'E 09°8by°L69'T  |0£7688°0L6 06'€€€'899°¢C %80T UOYONIISUOIUOU - MIN
E'8SEOPE-  |0£'ITSSY L9'658'301 a'sIT'sTs- LSOLSIBL 1ISSE'9ST LLTOR'TSL- . MOFECI'IP9'l  |£9°07€'988 %6k'9 whwuA aAnedaIN
99'6L8°€01-  |Z1'9vbioLs 9%'995 TLY 6T6EETF-  [89°007°82E 6E198°s8Z | lov'tor'ovi-  |vvvLL'T8e 8LOLE'9ET %6001 WNUXBIN ANRSaN
0S'E9Y'95Z-  |E6°0ES'LSL'Ll |evL9ottos'Ll | |99°8s9'zLL IT6L8'65E'61 |LLLESTEL'OZ } [8PPSH'OER - |e8°T0K L6161 [se8r6'99eLl | {wo6Te patey 2anB3N
09'FLLE8Z'R1 |L6'80b'898°b1 LS e8I TSI €S 9T LIS'ERI‘O1 |95'€66°68S"y1 |z8 095" cEL'0E 9C'6L6'RLE'G  |RT'SSL'6TY'6T [P9PEL'B0L'ET %¥6°0 Py 2ANISO
uaNg sJpauag SHOHNQIIUOy FUBYJIT |swyauag suonnque) uuaRINg Sjauag _m__a::ﬂ_m._.:ou Ny X8}, saodane)

$00Z Ad - S00T-0€-6 01 +GOZ-1-01 ¥00T Ad - $00T-0E-6 N £00Z-1-01 £00Z Ad - E00Z-0£-6 01 200Z-1-01 sdelory .

WY

paredarg

T v




L00T-6-1 R uey

1 Jo [adeg

%00 T WALTUHA ANUEIN/SDCQEIr 500 U, S5 26 30utre)) RIEnay sanwdan = (I

i

w181 X¥) 1002 A0 J0f Psn $93um 9[qeXN1 900T-0E-6 01 S00Z-1-0T Tl SSequiep v WOy e sjunoo ko @

%000 A = el Sty xu STwRAY

o fooo'cessrs - -mol]  loooEsE'ers. woL

000°T1- 000°L1- Surpunoy - , awpunoy

000'€E- 000'058'Z  %000°00T %80 - %00'8 %166 BOTRANSUS - 43N D00'E68'T  BOCO0OT  %BFRO %60'8 %001 TONIATSUOI - MIN

000'ELT- 000'9PE'T  %O0D'00T  %EBSH %oF'1 %BILT TONDINSUCO-UOU ~ MaN 000'6IT'E  %00000T  %ISH %09'T " BRET UOTIINISUOI-UOU - MIN

000'TL 000"€0¥ %000°00F  %ST0 BIEY BIED TOTIANSUO0-UOY - JARRIIN 000'TEE - %000°00T %510 %BI'S . BIFY UOHITNSUOI-UO - 2AREEaN]

000'911 D00'EE9 %000'001 %STO %166 %166 UOTPONSTO - JARREN 000'L1S BOOOO0T  BETO %60'8 %7001 LOTOISI0a - 2ARTEIN

000 6T1S 000°ZST'THE aaneSopN 27 3AnEOg 0D0'EZ0'THE ¥05's1 saneBaN 79 ANE0]

000°95%' €8 000'L86'81% E aanviN DO0'LES'STS . . 1251 anneday

0009k 000'0ZE'T %0000 %0S'S %166 %166 : DO0'P68'T  BODO'OT  WOSS %60'8 %001 - 6EF

000" 60% 000'6ZE'T  BO0OOT  %OS'S %56 %ICE D00'LIB'T  %00001  %0SS BILL %06 1€7

000'16€ - 000'€E1'T %0000~ %0S'S %116 %il6 - looo'zeL't 00001 %0STS BHP'L %BIT6 - eV

000ZLE 000°6£0°C  %0000T  ~ %OS'C BIL8 %1L8 |ooo‘ze9't  ®o0001  %OSS HIIL . %IBE 171

000"9SE 000'9P6'T | %BO00OT  %BOS'S BTES %IES 000'06S'F BOODOT 0SS - BELD %IV'8 9%z

000'LEE - 000'ZS8'T  %0000T - %0SE BI6L %I6'L 000'SIS'T  ~%00001  %0S°S %LY'9 - WHIOB 828

000°81€ 000'85L'T . %00001  %05'S BICL BICL . 000'0FF'T | %0000T %05’ %19~ BTYL 8L

000°00€ 000'$99'T  %00DOT  %OS'S BiL . ®BITL - saum s[qer™ D00'SOE'T  %OOD'OT  %HOSS BES'S BITL 11 - sTem a[qwye)

000'€82 000'TLS'T %0000T ~  %0S°S %IL'9 | HBILD nhodum oatedon]  1000'B8TT  %0000T  %05°S %0S°S BHIY ) © mfopduzs aanedau

000" 4928 00O'LLY'L  %000'0T 0SS BIEY  BIED P %001 =8duorB 0| JOOO'EIT'T  %0000T  %0S°C BEL'S B9 Tl 0 9,007 = sdnaxd o]

000°LTEES 000'591'€T8 S sanmod]  |o00'T6Y'9TS T £86°L1 2ANE0J
. [ooo'TEE- D00'EOL'€  %0000L - %BL'ER %860 - BITI | 000'++0'F  %00001  BBL'8S %LO'1 %TET 0887

000'70¢- 000'I0K'€  %000'0T . %888 %06'0 %BIT'T 000'C0L'E  %000°01  %BLBE %B60 s Yratf 9TE'T

000'Z0¢- 000'660°C  %0000T  %EL'BR %780 %101 000'[0F'E  %0000T . %BL'8B %060 L AR $OE'T

0OD'0FE" 000'65L'T  %0000T . BBLBR BELO %160 000'660°C - %0000T  HBL'ES - HIRO %HTO'] 16

000" T9E- 000'05H'T  %HO000T  %BL'BR %590 %180 000'2L6L'C  %0000T  %BL'ES %BYL0 %60 198

000°0¥E- j000°bST'T B000DT  %BLBB %LSO EATA] 000'F6P'T  %0000T  %BL'ES %090 %780 L6T'T

000°0%€" 000ZSE'T  %0000T  %BL'ES B6+0 %190 000'261'C  %00001  %8L'B% %850 %TL0 or'T

000° T ¥E- 000°6FS'T  %000°DT %8L'88 KBIF0 %IC0 saBem a[quyw] - |000'068'T 200001 %888 %050 %790 #8511 sadem o[qexm

000°0FE- 000°LPT'T  %O0O0T  %BL'EB RBEE'D %10 rfophus aansed 000'L8S'T %0000 %8L'8% %TY0 %TC0 9£C'T niopduss aamsod

000°0FES- DOO'SK6S  %O00'0T  “%BL'SR %S5T0 %IE0 36 3,007 = sdnoad g1 000'S8T'1$ w0000  %8L'8% BYED %P0 TET'S J° %001 = sdnoid gj

Savasagt] FUIU] dnoxp) x>d sade A miduny  rerpdniny vonduasag Rifoou] dmoug) Jod (=53 AL prdyiny  RIdnny  sRioduyg vonduosa(f
B} parfaig sofep  o[gEXELe  %0L08 - Mopd : poweforg =M JQEXULJe  %KOL0R 0Py o
000°089'95T +3 olexeLjo  o¥muoand  mYY  ewywel epquurye  ofmmarng  wyyV  awnjye]  rqumy
598e M 2[qENe], oBwusad CoAw Av], odumarmg g xe] o .
L00Z AD perelorg %00] UTLL 551 38 Y0uus) PN} 3K0[UIT IATTIIN S[NPOTPS WY ¥R L, LOOT J%3% T8pUS[e)

‘ M J..iuiaﬂu_diﬁ\




Chairman Kaiser and Members of the Committee:

My name is Marvin Miller. I am a partner in and Vice President of Twin
City Roofing Inc. located in Mandan. Our company is a commercial roofing
contractor doing work in about half of the state of North Dakota. I am
opposed to H.B. 1409.

We are a seasonal employer. We vary from approximately 12 to 15
employees in the winter months to 40 to 45 employees at our peak. Since all
of our work is outside we are very much at the mercy of the weather. We
will work whatever hours we can during the winter months however
temperatures and snow or ice have a direct impact on the quality of our
finished product. As a result there are times every winter when we are not
able to work. We recall our employees whenever weather allows us to work.

We have been able to have our employees be considered as job attached by
Job Service. Obviously most of them are not out seeking other employment
during this time when Twin City Roofing is not able to work.

Our work requires a considerable amount of on-the-job training. The first
few months we have an employee those people are not very productive for
us. That is not to say they are not working hard, but it takes time for them to
learn the many facets of our industry. When we start a new hire in April that
person has become a fairly skilled worker by fall. Many years that is just
about the time the weather turns and we are not able to work on a consistent
basis. If this worker is not able to file as job attached he must seek other
employment. If another employer hires this worker our training dollars have
been wasted. Our productivity would also be impacted as we would not
have the nucleus of experienced workers.

These workers become more valuable to us each successive season we are
able to retain them. Probably after 4 or 5 years they will have obtained the
skills needed to be a foreman. Yet each year, if they are not allowed to file
as job attached, we risk losing them. Irealize
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we could lose any worker at any time but if these people enjoy their work
enough to return season after season why do we have to constantly be
concerned that we may not be able to retain them?

We continue to pay for health, life and disability insurance during the time
these workers are drawing benefits.

The workers in the roofing trade, as well as the entire construction industry,
are getting older. Within the next 15 years a huge percentage of the current
workers will be retired. We are not able to replace these workers nearly fast
enough to sustain the industry. We need the ability to job attach workers,
especially in the seasonal trades.

The proposed fee, or tax increase, will cost Twin City Roofing
approximately $2000 per year. This additional expenditure will increase the
cost of doing business. As you are well aware, in order to recover this
additional cost we need to do more volume. That requires workers, more
specifically, trained workers.

The fiscal note attached to the H.B. 1409 indicates an anticipated 10%
annual decline. Can this be interpreted to mean the fee will be raised in the
future so that it will be high enough that those of us who wish to job attach
employees will not be able to afford it after a few years?

I respectfully request this committee to give H.B. 1409 a “DO NOT PASS”
recommendation. :

Dy, Al

Marvin Miller
Vice President
Twin City Roofing, Inc.
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House Bill 1409 MR

Chairman Kaiser, Members of the Committee. My name is Brad Ballweber. 1am
VP/Treasurer of Northern Improvement Company. We are a heavy/highway contractor

headquartered in North Dakota. We oppose HB 1409.

+ A $100.00/employee job attached fee would have a detrimental effect on
competitive bids. By way of example, if our job attached employee total is 200,
our cost would be $20,000.00. Out of state contractors would not have this
additional cost. We have lost many competitively bid state projects to out of state

contractors by far less dollar values.

« Due to weather, our work force is seasonal. Skilled construction people are
becoming more difficult to find each year. Legislation of this kind may force key

employees to move to another state to avoid the process outlined in HB 1409.

*  In 1999, the legislature and ND Job Service implemented major changes. Today,
because of these changes, the adjustable rate system has brought unemployment
insurance out of its financial hole and we have exceeded the surplus goal.
Granted, there are still some inequities between the positive and negative balance
employers; however, with a little tweaking of the formula, greater balance will be
achieved. I urge you not to implement a penalty fee for job attached employees as
proposed in HB 1409. Rather, allow the adjustable formula system time to evolve

and assess the results at a later date.

We oppose House Bill 1409.



Job Service North Dakota Survey on Job Attachment Policy, February — March 2006

.job-attached participation and members of labor groups that are identified with job-attached
populations such as construction workets.

Areas where the employer groups tend to agree are in responses to questions 6 and
12 concerning:

» Verification of job attachment
* Requiring employers to respond to JSND to verify claimant job search

Respondents that are job-attached UI Claimants strongly disfavor change.
Respondents with standard occupational codes most disfavoring changes are (selected either
disagree or strongly disagree responding to Question 3):

+T'ransportation 99%
+Construction 93%
*Repair 87%

In the final summation, this study raises a fundamental social policy question. That
is whether or not job attachment for the retention of an industry’s employees during off-
season is an appropriate use of our state’s Unemployment Insurance Program. This study
points to sharp differences in opinion to the continuation or change of the current policy
among the vatious groups affected. While the majority of employers tend to favor change,
those most affected by any change, construction employers and UI Claimants, strongly
oppose any change to the current policy. Any change--ot for that matter, no change at all--is
likely to antagonize one or more groups involved in unemployment compensation job
attachment discussion. This is a situation in which common ground for all parties will likely
be difficult to find. It is unlikely that any policy regarding job attachment will satisfy all
groups with an interest in the discussion. ‘
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1-042 JOB SERVICE NORTH DAKOTA 3TA43]
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE/BUSINESS SERVICES
PO BOX 5507
_ BISMARCK, ND 58506-5507
. (701)328-2814
oo ‘ 2007 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE TAX RATE

AND TAXABLE WAGE BASE NOTICE

AT HE DATE: 12-05-06
E W WYLLE CORPORATION

PO BOX 1188
FARGO ND 5810?

YOUR 2007 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE TAX RATE IS 0.66%
IN 2007 THE FIRST $21,300 PAID EACH WORKER IS TAXABLE.

Your rate is determined in two steps. Step 1: It is determined if your Total All
vears Reserve is positive or negative. Because your TOTAL ALL YEARS RESERVE 15
positive, your rate is from the enclosed POSITIVE ACCOUNT TAX RATE SCHEDULE.

Step 2: Your Reserve Ratio is determined by dividing the Last 6-Year Reserve by the
A e Taxable Payroll. The Reserve Ratio determines your rate within the Positive
‘t Tax Rate Schedule. _

A
YO. RESERVE RATIO IS 3.61 (LAST 6-YEAR RESERVE DIVIDED BY AVERAGE PAYROLL.)"
TOTAL ALL LAST 6 YEAR TAXABLE
YEARS* YEARS** ENDING PAYROLL
TAXES PAID 645,573 150, 205 9/06 3,001,046
BENEFIT CHARGES 133,798 40,983 9/05 3,142,286
9/04 2,909,307
RESERVE = 511,775 109,222
AVERAGE = 3,017,547
Tnformation Purposes Only: YEAR ENDING 9/06 TAXES PAID 29,527
' ‘ BENEFIT CHARGES 4,614 ,

Additional payments may be made to lower your rate. To figure the amount needed to
place you in a lower rate within the schedule, multiply your average payroll by the
reserve ratio needed for the desired rate, and subtract the present 6-year reserve.
such payment must be made by April 30, 2007, in addition to taxes due.

% Total All Years Reserve is the Taxes Paid through october 31, 2006, minus the
Renefit Charges to your account through september 30, 2006.

#%_ast G-Year Reserve is the Taxes paid for the last six years through october 31,
2006, minus the Benefit Charges to your account for the last six years through

september 30, 2006.

. If you disagree with this determination,
YoU HAVE 15 DAYS FROM THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE TO FILE AN APPEAL.
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. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR longstanding, it has never been . IIL Summary of the Comments and
. comprehensively addressed in a rule in  Regulatory Changes
i:\rgli:mrear:it;‘nd Training the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR).  ¢omments Received on the Proposed
The A&A requirement is implicit in Rule

20 CFR Part 604

RIN 1205-AB41

Unemployment Compensation—
Eligibility

AGENCY: Employment and Training
Administration, Labor.

ACTION: Final rule,

SUMMARY: The Department of Labor
(Department) is issuing this Final Rule
to implement the requirements of the
Social Security Act (SSA) and the
Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA]}
that limit a State's payment of
unemployment compensation (UC) only
to individuals who are able and
available (A&A) for work. This rule
applies to all State UC laws and
programs.

DATES: Effective Date: This Final Rule is
effective February 15, 2007,

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Gerard Hildebrand, Office of Workforce
Security, ETA, U.S. Department of
Laber, 200 Constitution Avenue, NW,,
Room C—4518, Washington, DC 20210.
Telephone: (202) 693-3038 (voice) (this
is not a toll-free number); 1-800-326-
2577 (TDD); facsimile: (202) 693-2874;
e-mail: hildebrand.gerard@dol. gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

1. Background

On July 22, 2005, the Department
published a Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking (NPRM]} concerning the
A&A requirement at 70 FR 42474, The
Department invited comments through
September 20, 2005.

II. General Discussion of the Final Rule

The Department and its predecessors
(the Social Security Board and the
Federal Security Agency) have
consistently interpreted provisions of
Faderal UC law, contained in the SSA
and the FUTA, to require that States, as
a condition of participation in the
Federal-State UC program, limit the
payment of UC to individuals who are
A&A. As explained in the NPRM, the
UC program is designed to provide
temporary wage insurance for
individuals who are unemplayed due to
a lack of suitable work. The Federal
A&A rules implement this design by
testing whether the fact that an
individual did not work for any week
was involuntary due to the
unavailability of suitable work.
Although this interpretation is

the structure and purpose of the SSA
and the FUTA, and Congress has
repeatedly adopted, acquiesced in, and
relied on the Department'’s
interpretation that Federal UC law
includes an A&A requirement.
Nevertheless, because the A&A
requirement is not explicitly stated in
Federal law or the CFR, some confusion
exists regarding the validity of the A&A
requirement as well as its scope and
application.

This confusion became especially
clear in rulemakings that created and
then removed the Birth and Adoption
UC (BAA-UC) regulation, which
permitted States to pay UC to new
parents who stopped work following the
birth or adoption of a child. See 65 FR
37210 (June 13, 2000) for the BAA-UC
Final Rule, and 68 FR 58540 (Oct. 9,
2003) for the final rule removing the
BAA-UC rule. In both rulemakings,
commenters argued that there are no
specific A&A requirements set out in
Federal law and that Congress expressly
rejected A&A requirements. In the
course of these rulemakings, it also
became clear that misconceptions
existed about the application and scope
of the Federal A&A requirement. For
example, misconceptions existed about interpretation of the eligibility rules
why the Department permitted under FUTA. This proposed rule will

mdtw,'du_ils tto bo t?]'fﬁteg asaﬁ&A “: greatly clarify the situation for the States
certain siuations. e ep men * ok Kk

discussed these situations in detail at 68 Conversely, several commenters

FR 58540, 58543-56545 (Oct. 9, 2003).  gtated that the rule was either not

As anather example, some commenters—— necessary, or that the Department failed
viewed an active work search as a to specify any controversy or confusion
necessary compenent of the ARA over the validity of the AXA
requirement. However, this is not the requirement, aside from issues related to
Department’s position. the BAA-UC regulation. Nonetheless,

As a result of this confusion, the one of these commenters dicll‘ .
Department issued an NPRM clearly acknowledge that there is a "difference
setting forth its interpretation of the of opinion between T'he Department and
A&A requirement and is now issuing some comm%ntators cfmillcemmg the
this Final Rule. This Final Rule does not &Xistence and nature of the ABA

requirement.
regulate other areas of the UC program, he Department believes that the
such as monetary entitlement or

. . : ; commenters’ divergence of opinion on
disqualifications for such actions as

- He . this matter serve to reinforce its view
voluntarily quitting employment. This  that rulemaking is necessary to put any
Final Rule also does not address Federal

1ot doubt about its position to rest and to
labor laws (such as minimum wage or avoid controversies regarding the
overtime laws) or disability

existence and nature of a Federal A&A
nondiscrimination laws (such as the

requirement.
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of ndividuals with Disabilities. Several
1973), which might affect the

commenters suggested the rule address
administration of the A&A requirement.

The Department received 25 pieces of
correspondence commenting on the
NFPRM by the close of the comment
period. Thirteen comments were from
State UC agencies. Five comments were
from business or employer interest
groups, and seven comments were from
worker advocacy groups. The
Department considered all timely
comments and included them in the
rulemaking record. One late comment
was not considered.

These comments are discussed below
in the Discussion of Comments. Also
discussed below are all substantive
changes made to the rule that stem from
the comments received. Non-substantive
changes are not discussed.

Discussion of Comments

Need for Rule. Several commenters
supportad the rule. One of these
supporters noted that “Although the
‘A%A’ test has always been a Federal
requirement, the absence of any clear,
readily available and legally binding
statement articulating this policy has
encouraged many inappropriate”
legislative proposals. Another supporter
stated that “In recent years, we have
seen legislation introduced in a number
of States, which we beliave to be in
violation of the longstanding

the making of a “‘reasonable
accommoadation” under the Americans
with Disabilities Act for individuals
with disabilities. The principal reason
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the Department undertook the creation
of the rule was to eliminate confusion
about the existence and nature of the
A&A requirement in Federal UC law.
This limited purpose was noted in the
NPRM at 70 FR 42474: “This rule also
does not address federal labor laws

* * * gr disability nondiscrimination
laws * * *" In addition, the
Department's regulations at 29 CFR part
32 already place obligations on States
regarding nondiscrimination on the
basis of disability. Determining whether
an individual with a disability is A&A
under the rule is a case-by-case
determination. The Department believes
that program letters rather than a
regulation are better vehicles for
applying general nondiscrimination
obligations to case-by-case State
determinations on whether an
individual with a disability is A&A.
Therefore, no change is made to the rule
as a result of these comments.

Minimum Requirement and State
Flexibility. Several commenters viewed
the rule as restricting State flexibility in
ways that would adversely affect
eligibility. For example, one commenter
stated that, “As currently written, the
standards actively restrict or discourage
States from taking steps to make the Ul
system accessible to the changing
workforce, including individuals who
are domestic violence survivors, who
must seek work on a part-time basis
* * * " This commenter went on to
state “that the proposed regulations
* * * may serve to restrict Ul coverage
and deal a serious blow to State laws
currently in effect that have expanded
coverage to previously underserved
categories of workers.” Conversely, one
commenter suggested that the rule be
clarified to more clearly state that it
creates only minimum requirements.

Although the Department agrees that
States should retain wide latitude in
crafting their UC laws, it also believes
that State laws must assure that an
individual’s unemployment for any
week is involuntary due to the
unavailability of suitable work. This
requirement protects the integrity of the
UC program and the State’s
unemployment fund. The Department
believes that the rule provides States
with considerable flexibility because it
merely provides that States must require
an individual to meet a minimum test
of A&A.

More specifically, nothing in the rule
requires that a State apply a single A&A
test to all individuals. As a result, States
continue to have the flexibility to apply
a more liberal A&A test to victims of
domestic violence than to other
individuals. All that is required is that

the individual meet the rule’s minimum
A&A test.

Concerning part-time work, the
proposed rule established a very broad
test of availability: an individual may be
considered available if the “individual
is available for any work for all era
portion of the week claimed,” as long as
the individual is not withdrawing from
the labor market. 70 FR 42474, 42481
(emphasis added); § 604.5(a)(1). Similar
language exists for the *“able”
requirement. See 70 FR 42474, 42481;

§ 604.4(a}. The language referring to “a
portion of the week" recognizes that an
individual may be eligible if “A&A”
only for part-time work. Accordingly,
the Department has not changed the
proposed rule as a result of these
comments regarding State flexibility.

Concerning the comment that the rule
should more clearly state that it creates
only & minimum requiremant, the
Department believes the proposed rule
was clear in its statement that it “does
not limit the States’ ability to impose
additional able and available
requirements that are consistent with
applicable Federal laws.” 70 FR 42474,
42481; §604.3(c). Accordingly, the
Department has not changed the
proposed rule as a result of this
comment.

Work Search. Several commenters
stated that conducting an active search
for work is a necessary component of
availability and should be addressed in
future rulemakings. The Department
agrees that, as a policy matter, States
should require an active search for
work, but does not agree that the
suggested rulemaking is appropriate.
The Department's contemporaneous
interpretation of the original SSA in
1635 was that Federal law does not
require a work search for the regular UC
pro raml.

Thereafter, in the early 1980’s,
Congress examined the issue of work
search in the UC program. This
exarnination did not result in a search
for work requirement for the regular UC
program. Instead, it resulted in the
creation of a “sustained and systematic"
search for work requirement only for the
Federal-State extended benefits
program. Pub. L. 96~-499, § 1024(a)
(1680) (amending the Federal-State
Extended Unemployment Compensation
Act of 1970 §202(a)(3), tit. II at
§202(a){3)(E)). Therefore, the
Department believes that Congress is
well aware of the Department’s
longstanding interpretation that there is
no Federal work search requirement and
has not chosen to add & work search
requirement. Any work search
requirement would need to be legislated

by Congrass.

Labor Market Attachment. Several
commenters objected to the requirement
that A& A be tested in terms of whether
the individual has withdrawn from the
labor market as discussed in §§604.4(a)
and 604.5{(a)(1}-(2] . Specifically, these
commenters averred that this
“withdrawal” test imposed a new and
more rigid standard for A&A and
suitable work cases than had previously
existed. Commenters also expressed
concerns that application of the
“withdrawal’’ test would result in States
denying UC to an individual even
though no “suitable” work is available
in the labor market, which would be
inconsistent with one of the
Department's stated rationales for this
rulemaking in that UC should be paid
for a lack of ““suitable’”” work.

The Department does not believe that
this test is new, rigid, or would require
a denial of UC where no “suitable”
waork is available. Several commenters
claiming the test was new stated that it
was a departure from a Departmental
issuance from 1962. However, as noted
in the preamble to the proposed rule,
that issuance actually provided for the
labor market test described in the
proposed rule:

“The availability requirement means that
the claimani must be available for suitable
work which s ordinarily performed in his
chosen locality in sufficient amount to
constitute a substantial labor market for his
sarvices. A ciaimant does not satisfy the
requirement by being available for an
insignificant amount of work. Ordinarily, for
example, B concert pianist in a rural area who
limits his availability to concert work in that
area is not available for enough suitable work
to mest the requirement.”

70 FR 42474, 42476 (July 22, 2005)
(quoting U.S. Department of Labor,
Bureau of Employment Security,
Unemployment Insurance Legislative
Policy—Recommendations for State
Le%islation 1962 (October 1962)).

he Department believes the
“withdrawal” test balances the need to
assure genuine attachment by the
individual to the labor market—which
is what the A&A requirement is
testing—with the need to recognize that,
due to labor market fluctuations, work
in the individual's usual and customary
occupation may not be available at any
given time. In fact, contrary to the
commenters’ assertions, the
“withdrawal” test provides the States
with greater flexibility as it permits
States to pay UC to individuals who
have A&A restrictions, such as limiting
availability to part-time work, as long as
the restrictions do not amount to a
withdrawal from the labor market.
Without this “‘withdrawal” test,
individuals with any restrictions would
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be denied and the regulation would be
rigid, as the commenters assert.

he proposed and final rule at
§ 604.3(b) emphasizes the minimal
nature of the “withdrawal’ test by
stating that:

Whether an individual is able to work and
available for work * * * will be tested by
datermining whether the individual is
offering services for which a labor market
exists. This does not mean that job vacancies
must exist, only that, at 8 minimum, the type
of services the individual is able and
availabls ta parform is generally performed
in the labor market.

Under this test, if the services offered
by an individual are restricted to the
point that the services are not generally
performed in the labor market (that is,
the individual has withdrawn from the
labor market), then the individual is
unemployed as a result of those
restrictions and is not eligible for UC.
Those restrictions on services could be
for any number of reasons, such as
hours of availability, the distance the
individual is willing to commute, or
what types of jobs the individual is
willing or able to accept. Holding an
individual unavailable due to such
restrictions is neither novel nor
inconsistent with the notion that UC is
for individuals who are involuntarily
unemployed due to lack of suitable
work. At the same time, as noted, the
“withdrawal’’ test provides flexibility as
it permits payment of benefits to
individuals who place some restrictions
on their availability, but who have not
withdrawn from the labor market.

The Department also notes that the
rule does not require a denial of UC
simply because no “suitable” work was
available at a particular time. As noted,
the rule balances the need to assure
genuine attachment to the labar force
with labor market conditions that cause
a lack of work in the individual's usual
and customary occupation. Thus, on the
one hand, jobs of the type that the
individual is making him or herself
available for must be performed in the
labor market, even if no new job
openings currently exist, On the other
hand, if the individual restricts his or
her availability to jobs for which there
is no labor market, the individual is not
available.

The proposed and final rule at
§604.5(a)(2) affords further flexibility by
providing that what is “suitable” is
determined under State law. This
provision zllows the State to take into
consideration the education and
training of the individual, among other
factors.

What a State law may not do,
however, is to define “suitable” work in
such a way that it permits the

individual to limit his or her availability
in a way that constitutes a withdrawal
from the labor market. To emphasize
this point, § 604.5(a)(2) of the proposed
rule has been changed from “The
individual limits his or her availability
to work which is suitable for such
individual as determined under the
State UC law, provided such limitation
does not constitute a withdrawal from
the labor market” to “The individual
limits his or her availability to work
which is suitable for such individual as
determined under the State UC law,
provided the State law definition of
suitable work does not permit the
individual to limit his or her availability
in such a way that the individual has
withdrawn from the laber market.”

Availability and Iliness. A State
comment addressed the proposed rule’s
provision at § 604.4(b), which permits
an individual to be considered “able” to
work if the *individual has previously
demonstrated his or her ability to work
and availability for work following the
most recent separation from
employment,” unless the individual has
refused an offer of suitable work due to
such illness or injury. This commenter
noted the lack of a parallel provision in
the ““‘available for work" section of the
rule and questioned whether this meant
the individual, although considered
“able to work,” must be denied for not
being available for work. The
Department did not intend this
individual to be denied for not being
available for work. As a result of this
comment, §604.5(g) of the Final Rule
allows a State to find an individual
available for work if it finds that the
individual is able to work under
§ 604.4(b), despite the individual's
illness or injury. Further, as a result of
this change, § 604.5(g) of the proposed
rule was re-designated to § 604.5(h) in
this Final Rule.

Aliens. Section 604.5(f) of the
proposed rule provided that to be
considered available for work for a week
(and thus potentially eligible for UC for
that week], an “alien must be legally
authorized to work that week in the
United States by the appropriate agency
of the United States government.”
Several commenters requested that
specific situations involving alien
eligibility be addressed in the Final
Rule, notably regarding aliens with H~
1B visas. Since legislation and Federal
regulations govarning alien status and
work authorization frequently change,
the Department believes it unwise to
specify in Part 604 which classes of
aliens have work authorization and may
therefore be found legally available far
work. Rather, the Department will issue
program letters relaying information on

alien work authorization from the
United States Citizenship and
Immigration Service. Accordingly, no
change is made to the rule as a result of
this comment. The Department did
delete unnecessary language, however.

Finally, the Department put a number
of the provisions of the regulatory text
into the active voice and substituted
“must’* for “shall” in several places.
These changes are purely stylistic; the
Department intends no substantive
change in meaning of the amended
provisions.

IV, Administrative Information

Executive Order 12866

The Department has determined that
this Final Rule is a “significant
regulatory action’” within the meaning
of Executive Order 12866 because it
raises novel legal or policy issues
arising out of legal mandates, the
President’s priorities, or the principles
set forth in the Executive Order at
section 3(f)(4). Accordingly, the Final
Rule has been submitted to, and
reviewed by, the Office of Management
and Budget (OMB).

However, the Department has
determined that this Final Rule is not
“economically significant” because it
does not have an annual effect on the
economy of $100 million or more. The
Department has also determined that the
Final Rule has no adverse material ’
impact upon the economy and that it
does not materially alter the budgsting
impact of entitlements, grants, user fees
or loan programs, or the rights and
obligations of recipients. This Final
Rule implements the A%A requirements
of the program consistent with the
authorizing legislation and serves to
codify longstanding program
interpretations.

Further, the Department has evaluated
the rule and found it consistent with the
regulatory philosophy and principles set
forth in Executive Order 12866, which
governs agency rulemaking. Although it
impacts States and State UC agencies, it
does not adversely affect them in a
material way. The rule limits a State's
payment of UC only to individuals who
are A&A for work, and all State laws
currently contain A&A requirements.

Executive Order 13132

The Department reviewed this rule in
accordance with Executive Order 13132,
and determined that the rule may have
Federalism implications. To this end,
organizations representing State elected
officials were contacted. These
organizations expressed nc concerns.
About one-half of the comments
received were from individual State
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agencies. The Department believes this :

Final Rule adequately addresses the
concerns expressed in those comments.

Executive Order 12988

The Department drafted and reviewed
this regulation according to Executive
Order 12988 on Civil Justice Reform,
and it does not unduly burden the
Federal court system. The Department
drafted the rule to minimize litigation
and provide a clear legal standard for
affected conduct. The Department has
reviewed this Final Rule carefully to
eliminate drafting errors and
ambiguities.

Unfunded Mandates Reform Act of 1995
and Executive Order 12875

The Department reviewed this rule
under the Unfunded Mandates Reform
Act of 1995 (UMRA) (2 U.S.C. 1501 et
seq.) and Executive Order 12875, The
Department has determined that this
Final Rule does not include any Federal
mandate that may result in increased
expenditures by State, local, or tribal
governments, in the aggregate, or by the
private sector, of $100 million or more
in any one year. Accordingly, the
Department has not prepared a
budgstary impact statement.

Paperwork Reduction Act

This regulatory action contains no
information collection requirements.

Regulatory Flexibility Act/SBREFA

We have notified the Chief Counsel
for Advocacy, Small Business
Administration, and made the
certification under the Regulatory
Flexibility Act (RFA) at 5 U.5.C. 605(b),
that this proposed rule will not have a
significant economic impact on a
substantial number of small entities.
Under the RFA, no regulatory flexibility
analysis is required when the rule “will
not * * * have a significant economic
impact on a substantial number of small
entities,” 5 U.8.C. 605(b). A small entity
is defined as a small business, small
not-for-profit organization, or small
governmental jurisdiction. 5 U.S.C.
601(3)~(5}. Therefore, the definition of
the term “small entity” does not include
States, State UC agencies, or
individuals.

This Final Rule codifies a
longstanding interpretation for
determining eligibility for unemployed
individuals. This Final Rule, therefors,
governs an entitlement program
administered by the States and not by
small governmental jurisdictions. In
addition, the entitlement program offers
benefits to unemployed individuals and
does not directly affect the small entities
as defined by the RFA. Therefore, the

Department certifies that this Final Rule
will not have a significant impact on a
substantial number of small entities
and, as a result, no regulatory flexibility
analysis is required.

In addition, the Department certifies
that this Final Rule is not a major rule
as defined by section 804 of the Small
Business Regulatory Enforcement Act of
1996 {(SBREFA). Under section 804 of
SBREFA, a major rule is one that is an
“economically significant regulatory
action’” within the meaning of Executive
Order 12866. The Department certifies
that, because this Final Rule is not an
economically significant rule under
Executive Order 12866, it also is not a
major rule under SBREFA,

Effect on Family Life

The Department certifies that this rule
was assessed in accordance with Pub. L.
105-277, 112 Stat. 2681, and that the

rule does not adversely affect the well-
being of the nation's families.

List of Subjects in 20 CFR Part 604

Employment and Training
Administration, Labor, and
Unemplcyment Compensation.

Catalogue of Federal Domestic
Assistance Number

This program is listed in the
Catalogue of Federal Domestic
Assistance at 17.225, Unemployment
Insurance.

Emily Stover DeRocco,

Assistant Secretary of Labor, Employment
and Training Administration.

® For the reasons set forth in this
preamble, Chapter V of Title 20, Code of
Federal Regulations, is amended by
adding a new Part 604 to read as
follows:

PART 604—REGULATIONS FOR
ELIGIBILITY FOR UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION

Sec.

604.1 Purpose and scope.

604,2 Definitions.

604.3 Able and available requirement—
general principles.

604.4 Application—ability to work,

604.5 Application—availability for work.

604.6 Conformity and substantial
compliance.

Authority: 42 U.5.C. 1302(a); 42 U.S.C.
503(a)(2) and (5); 26 U.S.C. 3304(a)(1) and
(4); 26 U.5.C. 3306(h); 42 U.S.C. 1320b-7{d);
Secretary's Order No. 4-75 (40 FR 18515}
and Secratary’s Order No. 14-75 (November
12, 1975).

§604.1 Purpose and Scope.

The purpose of this Part is to
implement the requirements of Federal
UC law that limit a State’s payment of

UC to individuals who are able to work
and available for work. This regulation
applies to all State UC laws and
programs.

§604.2 Definitions.

{a) Department means the United
States Department of Labor.

{b) FUTA means the Federal
Unemployment Tax Act, 26 U.5.C. 3301
et seq.

(c) Social Security Act means the
Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. 501 et
seq.
?d} State means a State of the United
States of America, the District of
Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico, and the United States Virgin
Islands.

(e) State UC agency means the agency
of the State charged with the
administration of the State's UC law.

(f) State UC law means the law of a
State approved under Section 3304(a),
FUTA (26 U.S.C. 3304{a)).

(g) Unemployment Compensation
(UC) means cash benefits payable to
individuals with respect to their
unemployment.

(h) Week of unemployment means a
week of total, part-total or partial
unemployment as defined in the State's
UC law.

§604.3 Able and available requirement—
general principles.

{a) A State may pay UC only to an
individual who is able to work and
available for work for the week for
which UC is claimed.

(b) Whather an individual is able to
work and available for work under
paragraph (a) of this section must be
tested by determining whether the
individual is offering services for which
a labor market exists. This requirement
does not mean that job vacancies must
exist, only that, at a minimum, the type
of services the individual is able and
available to perform is generally
performed in the labor market. The State
must determine the geographical scope
of the labor market for an individual
under its UC law.

{c) The requirement that an individual
be able to work and available for work
applies only to the week of
unemployment for which UC is
claimed. It does not apply to the reasons
for the individual's separation from
employment, although the separation
may indicate the individual was not
able to work or available for work
during the week the separation
occurred. This Part does not address the
authority of States to impose
disqualifications with respect to
separations. This Part does nat limit the
States’ ability to impose additional able
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and available requirements that are
consistent with applicable Federal laws.

§604.4 Application—ability to work.

(a) A State may consider an
individual to be able to work during the
week of unemployment claimed if the
individual is able to work for all or a
portion of the week claimed, provided
any limitation on his or her ability to
work does not constitute a withdrawal
from the labor market.

(b) If an individual has previously
demonstrated his or her ability to work
and availability for work following the
mogt recent separation from
employment, the State may consider the
individual able to work during the week
of unemployment claimed despite the
individual’s illness or injury, unless the
individual has refused an offer of
suitable work due to such illness or
injury.

§604.5 Applicatlon—avalitability for work

(a) General application. A State may
consider an individual to be available
for work during the week of
unemployment claimed under any of
the following eircumstances:

(1) The individual is available for any
work for all or a portion of the week
claimed, provided that any limitation
placed by the individual on his or her
avaijlability does not constitute a
withdrawal from the lahor market,

{(2) The individual limits his or her
availability to work which is suitable for
such individual as determined under
the State UC law, provided the State law
definition of suitable work does not
permit the individual to limit his or her
availability in such a way that the
individual has withdrawn from the
labor market. In determining whether
the work is suitable, States may, among
other factors, take into consideration the
education and training of the
individual, the commuting distance
from the individual's home to the job,
the previous work history of the
individual (including salary and fringe
benefits), and how long the individual

as been unemployed.

(3) The individual is on temporary
lay-off and is available to work only for
the employer that has temporarily laid-
off the individual.

{b) jury service. If an individual has
previously demonstrated his or her
availability for work following the most
recent separation from employment and
is appearing for duty before any court
under a lawfully issued summeons
during the week of unemployment

imed, a State may consider the
ividual to be available for work. For
ch an individual, attendance at jury
duty may be taken as evidence of

continued availability for work.
However, if the individual does not
appear as required by the summons, the
State must determine if the reason for
non-attendance indicates that the
individual is not able to work or is not
available for work.

(c) Approved training, A State must
not deny UC to an individual for failure
to be available for work during a week
if, during such week, the individual is
in training with the approval of the
State agency. However, if the individual
fails to attend or otherwise participate
in such training, the State must
determine if the reason for non-
attendance or non-participation
indicates that the individual is not able
to work or is not available for work.

{d) Self-Employment Assistance. A
State must not deny UC to an individua)
for fatlure to be available for work
during a week if, during such week, the
individual is participating in a self-
employment assistance program and
meets all the eligibility requirements of
such self-employment assistance
program.

{e) Short-time compensation. A State
must not deny UC to an individual
participating in a short-time
compensation {also known as
worksharing) program under State UC
law for failure to be available for work
during a week, but such individual will
be required to be available for his or her
normal workweek,

(f) Alien status. To be considered
available for work in the United States
for a week, the alien must be legally
authorized to work that week in the
United States by the appropriate agency
of the United States government. In
detormining whether an alien is legally
authorized to work in the United States,
the State must follow the requirements
of section 1137(d) of the 8SA {42 U.S.C.
1320b-7{d)}, which relate to verification
of and determination of an alien's
status.

(8) Relation to ability to work
requirement. A State may consider an
individual available for work if the State
finds the individual able to work under
§604.4(b) despite illness or injury.

{h) Work search. The requirement that
an individual be available for work does
not require an active work search on the
part of the individual. States may,
however, require an individual to be
actively seeking work to be considered
available for work, or States may impose
a separate requirement that the
individual must actively seek work.

§604.6 Conformity and substantial
compliance.

(a) In general. A State’s UC law must
conform with, and the administration of

its law must substantiaily cor_

the requirements of this regulation 10,
purposes of certification under:

(1) Section 3304(c) of the FUTA (26
U.8.C. 3304(c)), with respect to whether
employers are eligible to receive credit
against the Federal unemployment tax
established by section 3301 of the FUTA
(26 U.S.C. 3301), and

(2) Section 302 of the SSA (42 U.S.C.
502}, with respect to whether a State is
eligible to receive Federal grants for the
administration of its UC program.

(b) Resolving Issues of Conformity and
Substantial Compliance. For the
purposes of resolving issues of
conformity and substantial compliance
with the requirements of this regulation,
the following provisions of 20 CFR
601.5 apply:

(1) Paragraph (b) of this section,
pertaining to informal discussions with
the Department of Labor to resalve
conformity and substantial compliance
issues, and

(2) Paragraph (d) of this section,
pertaining to the Secretary of Labor’s
hearing and decision on conformity and
substantial compliance.

(c) Result of Failure to Conform or
Substantially Comply.

(1) FUTA Requirements. Whenever
the Secretary of Labor, after reasonable
notice and oppartunity for 4 hearing to
the State UC agency, finds that the State
UC law fails to conform, or that the
State or State UC agency fails to comply
substantially, with the requirements of
the FUTA, as implemented in this
regulation, then the Secretary of Labor
shall make no certification under such
act to the Secretary of the Treasury for
such State as of October 31 of the 12-
month period for which such finding is
made. Further, the Secretary of Labar
must notify the Governar of the State
and such State UC agency that further
payments for the administration of the
State UC law will not be made to the
State.

{2) SSA Requirements. Whenever the
Secretary of Labar, after reasonable
notice and opportunity for a hearing to
the State UC agency, finds that the State
UC law fails to conform, or that the
State or State UC agency fails to comply
substantially, with the requirements of
title IT, SSA (42 1.5.C. 501-504), as
implemented in this regulation, then the
Secretary of Labor must notify the
Governor of the State and such State UC
agency that further payments for the
administration of the State UC law will
not be made to the State untii the
Secretary of Labor is satisfied that there
is no longer any such failure. Until the
Secretary of Labor is so satisfied, the
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Department of Labor will not make .
further payments to such State.

. [FR Doc. E7-155 Filed 1-12-07; 8:45 am]
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